
1 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 

 

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District 
PO Box 425 – Gig Harbor, WA 98335 
253-858-3400 – info@penmetparks.org 

www.penmetparks.org  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA: Tuesday, September 17, 2019, 6:15pm  

Gig Harbor Civic Center Council Chambers (3510 Grandview St., Gig Harbor, WA 98335) 

Call to Order ___:___ 

Commissioner Roll Call:  
Present Excused Comment 

Maryellen (Missy) Hill 

Amanda Babich 

Todd Iverson 

Kurt Grimmer 

Steve Nixon 

ITEM 1 Approval of Agenda 

ITEM 2 Citizen Comments (three-minute time limit) 

ITEM 3 Presentations 

3.a Tristen Reid, Eagle Scout Project, Carnival Games Booth – 

Commissioner Legislative Funds 

3.b Executive Director Report (pages 3-7) 

3.c President’s Report 

ITEM 4 Consent Agenda 

4.a Approval of Vouchers 

 $120,608.21  Reference numbers: V2019418- V2019451 
(pages 8-11) 

4.b Approval of Consent Agenda 

ITEM 5 New Business 
5.a Board Orientation Packet (page 12) 
5.b Comprehensive Financial Management Policy Review 

(pages 13-39) 
5.c Board Policy Review (pages 40-53) 
5.d PSD Property Exchange Agreement (pages 54-60) 
 (Agreement separate attachment) 

ITEM 6 Comments by Board/Subcommittee Reports 
6.a Community Center 
6.b Marketing 
6.c Fundraising—Under Development 

ITEM 7 Next Board Meeting(s): Tuesday, October 1, 2019 
(Regular and Study Session) at new City Hall location, 6:15pm 

ITEM 8 Executive Session: none 

mailto:info@penmetparks.org
http://www.penmetparks.org/


2 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 

ITEM 9 Adjournment ___:___ 

 
AGENDA POLICY 
 
 No comments or discussion will be allowed on consent items. 
 Public comment will be allowed on each Regular Agenda Action Item. Each speaker will be 

limited to a three (3) minute time limit and may only speak once with a total of 15 minutes 
per side. Comments will be included as part of the official record of the meeting. 

 Citizen Comments: Citizens are afforded an opportunity at each regular and special meeting 
of the Board of Park Commissioners to offer their comments to the Board. Citizens are limited 
to a three (3) minute time limit and may only speak once during the Citizen Comment period 
at each meeting. Comments will be included as part of the official record of the meeting. 

 Individuals requesting an item to be placed on the agenda must submit a request by 12 
noon on the Tuesday preceding the Monday meeting date. 

Individuals wishing to submit materials or written testimony to the Board at the meeting must 
provide ten (10) copies at least 15 minutes prior to the start of the meeting. 
  



3 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 

 

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District 

PO Box 425 – Gig Harbor, WA 98335 

253-858-3400 – info@penmetparks.org 

www.penmetparks.org 

 

DEPARTMENT STAFF REPORT: September 17, 2019 

EXECUTIVE 

 The Salary Survey has kicked off. Elaine Sorensen has taken the lead on the project 

with MW Management Consultants. 

 The budget process is now in the Executive Director review phase. Each department is 

meeting the Executive Director to answer questions and refine their budget. 

 Coordination of the Executive Director Search continues. 

 Continue to coordinate with the school district on various issues. 

 The Boys and Girls Club agreement is now resolved and completed. 
 

MARKETING  

• Website audit in process for results to be delivered the week of the 9th 
• Core Internet Team first meeting (CIT) to mitigate all digital platforms and coordinate 

communication 
• Winter Parks and Recreation Guide (16 page) layout and design review and outline 
• Article published in Gate way (Front Page) on District recycling and sustainability programs 
• District booth placed at last Down Town Farmers Market for community outreach 
• Published adult programs flyers to promote adult fitness and wellness 
• Arial photos of park properties in progress 

CAPITAL PROGRAM  

 PenMet Recreation Center: The Hearing Examiner, on 8/21/19, left the record open 

so as to allow the County to contact the City of Gig Harbor to see if any concerns 

remain regarding traffic. 

 Reviewing Hales Pass / Arletta Schoolhouse project. 

 SHP Turf Lighting continuing design assessment work 
    Review Public Meeting Comments 

 
  

mailto:info@penmetparks.org
http://www.penmetparks.org/


4 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 

PEG GRANTS IN PROGRESS 

 Eagle Scout projects for Bat houses at Hales Pass (approved, in progress). 

 Rotary Bark Park trail map and signs (preparing grant for future meeting). 

 Off Leash Area Obstacle Course (under review). 

 Tubby’s small dog area shelter (preparing grant for future meeting). 

 Narrows fencing (preparing grant for future meeting). 

 Three scouts currently discussing projects. 
 

VOLUNTEERS 

 Working with community service people at Narrows continues. 

 PHS runners trimmed trails at McCormick Forest; GHHS to trim trails at Rotary Bark Park. 

 Preparing for National Public Lands Day, 9/21/19 

 Preparing for Orca Recovery Day, 10/19/19 

 

HR 

 Organized a safety training with the full staff in August; next month is Sales and Customer 
Service. 

 Received approximately 35 resumes for the Facility Coordinator and Specialist positions. 

 Received approximately 200 resumes for the Administrative Assistant position. 
 

FINANCE 

 Staff is working on Draft 2 of the budget and the revision of the Financial Management Policy. 
 

MAINTENANCE & FACILITIES 

 Replaced slide at Sehmel Park in the playground. 

 Painted 7 soccer fields for 3v3 GHSC tournament. 

 Painted 5 soccer fields for TYEE cup. 

 Sprayed bees nests at all parks. 

 Helped Recreation camps run smoothly. 
 

RECREATION 

 Camps are on their 2nd to last week. Camp Highlights this week are Wizarding World of 
Hogwarts, Tooniversity Art Camp, Pacific Island Ballet Camp and a Salish Sea Scientists Camp 
put on by Harbor Wild Watch. 

 Little kickers is FULL with 128 kids in the program and will start September 7th. 

 Adult Softball just wrapped up the playoffs on Sunday August 11th with 15 teams from around 
the community. Will look to expand our seasons in future years to offer more recreational 
softball opportunities to the community. 

 Kelly and Mike are working away at planning for Scarecrow Festival along with an all new 
Monster Mash Bash around Halloween which we have partnered with Ocean 5 for and will hold 
it at their facility. 

 Mike is continuing to review applications for the Facility Coordinator position. Some very 
qualified candidates and will start interviews early September.  



5 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 

 
  

Oct 2019     

Tues 10/1 9/25 6:15p Study 
Session 

Discussion: Comprehensive Plan Review (PROS) 

Tues 10/1 9/25 7:15p Regular 
Meeting 

Presentation: none 
Discussion: 
Consent: 

    Minutes: 8/20, 9/17 
Vouchers: 
Executive Session: none 

Sat 10/12 Board Retreat (8 hours, time TBD) 

Tues 10/15 10/9 6:15p Study 
Session 

Discussion: 2020 Preliminary Budget Presentation 

NOTICE THIS TO NEWSPAPER 

Tues 10/15 10/9 7:15p Regular 
Meeting 

Presentation: none 

Discussion: 

Consent: 

Minutes: 10/1, 10/8 

Vouchers: 

Executive Session: none 



6 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 

 

Nov 2019     

Tues 11/5 10/31 TBD Study 
Session 

Discussion: 

Tues 11/5 10/31 6:15p Regular 
Meeting 

Presentation: none 

Discussion: 1st Public Hearing and Levy Rate approval 

Consent: 

Minutes: 10/22 

Vouchers: 

Executive Session: none 

Tues 11/19 11/14 TBD Study 
Session 

Discussion: 2020 Preliminary Budget Presentation 

Tues 11/19 11/14 6:15p Regular 
Meeting 

Presentation: Interim Final Report 

Discussion: 1st Public Hearing and Levy Rate approval 

Consent: 

    
Minutes: 11/5 

Vouchers: 

Executive Session: none 

 
  



7 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 

 

Dec 2019     

Tues 12/3 11/28 TBD Study 
Session 

Discussion: 

Tues 12/3 11/28 6:15p Regular 
Meeting 

Presentation: none 

Discussion: 

Consent: 

Minutes: 11/19 

Vouchers: 

Executive Session: none 

Tues 12/17 12/12 TBD Study 

Session 
Discussion: 2020 Preliminary Budget Presentation 

Tues 12/17 12/12 6:15p Regular 
Meeting 

Presentation: none 

Discussion: 

Consent: 

Minutes: 12/3 

Vouchers: 

Executive Session: none 

 
  



8 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 

 

 

  



9 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 

 

 
  



10 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 

 

 

  



11 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 

 

 
 
  



12 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 

 

Sample Notebook provided for review  



13 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 

 

  



14 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 



15 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 



16 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 



17 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 



18 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 



19 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 



20 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 



21 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 



22 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 



23 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 



24 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 



25 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 



26 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 



27 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 



28 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 



29 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 



30 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 



31 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 



32 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 



33 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 



34 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 



35 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 



36 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 



37 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 



38 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 



39 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 

  



40 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 

 

 

  



41 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 



42 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 



43 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 



44 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 



45 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 



46 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 



47 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 



48 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 



49 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 

 



50 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 



51 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 



52 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 



53 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 

  



54 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District 

10123 78th Ave NW, Gig Harbor, WA  98332         “Today We Touch Tomorrow”” 

Office: 253-858-3400   Fax: 253-858-3401 

E-mail: Info@PenMetParks.org 

 

DISTRICT COMMISSION MEMO 

To:  Peninsula Metropolitan Park District Board of Commissioners 

From:  Glenn Akramoff, Interim Executive Director 

Date:  September 6, 2019 

Subject: Resolution R2019-012 Execution of Property Exchange Agreement – PSD Bujacich 

Property for GHHS Track Property 

Background 

In 2010, Pierce County conveyed a number of properties to PenMet Parks, including the property 

located at 8502 Skansie Ave. which at that time was referred to as the “Peninsula Recreation Area”.  At 

that time, the east one-half of the property was leased to the Boys and Girls Club (BGC) and the west 

one-half of the property was leased to the Peninsula School District (PSD). 

In 2014, the property was short platted creating two lots with PenMet Parks leasing Lot 1 to BGC and 

leasing Lot 2 to PSD.  The resulting lots are depicted here: 

mailto:info@PenMetParks.org


55 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 

 

 

In 2015 and at BGC’s request, PenMet Parks sold Lot 1 to BGC.  A few months ago, BGC sold Lot 1 to PSD 

who is converting the BGC building into a new school.  As a part of that construction process, PSD will be 

increasing the footprint of the improvements which will increase the impervious surface area on Lot 1 

creating issues with drainage, setbacks and buffers.  Instead of leasing Lot 2, PSD wishes to acquire 

ownership of Lot 2 to alleviate those problems.  Lot 2 is legally described on the attached Exhibit A (Tax 

Parcel No. 0221067001, is 9.2 acres in size and includes a track, storage building, football field and forest 

buffer. 

In consideration for PenMet Parks transferring Lot 2 to PSD, PSD has proposed transferring ownership of 

the property located at 10202 Bujacich Road to PenMet Parks (Tax Parcel No. 0122363023).  PenMet 

Parks currently leases this property from PSD for use as an off-leash dog park (commonly known as the 

Rotary Bark Park) and trails.  This property is currently 94.88 acres in size, but PSD would only convey 

approximately 74.88 acres and retain 20 acres of the property.  The property to be conveyed to PenMet 

Parks (without reduction is legally described on the attached Exhibit B includes a marked trail system, 

15-acre fenced off-leash area and some older but mostly second growth trees and is depicted here: 

 



56 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 

 

 

 

This land exchange would be performed pursuant to a Property Exchange Agreement, the form of which 

is attached as Exhibit A.  The Agreement includes contingencies for inspections of each property and the 

timeline requested by PSD is as follows: 

 9/12/19 – PSD Board Meeting for agreement review and potential approval 

 9/17/19 – PenMet Parks Board meeting for agreement review and potential approval 

 Effective Date – Agreement signed by last party (approximately 9/18/19) 

 Document exchange - 5 Days (approximately 9/23/19) 

 Contingency period for due diligence - 45 Days from Effective Date (approximately 11/2/19)  

 11/5/19 – Resolution to surplus property and approve final agreements 

 11/6/19 – Proposed closing date. 
 

  



57 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 

In addition to the inspection contingencies, the transfer is also contingent upon PenMet Parks and PSD 

entering into a mutually acceptable Joint Use Agreement which, at a minimum, includes the following 

terms: 

PenMet Parks shall have the right to lease, on terms mutually acceptable to the Parties in their 

reasonable discretion, the Remaining School District Property for park and recreation purposes 

until such time as the School District decides to develop the Remaining School District Property 

or requires the use of the Remaining School District Property for School District purposes or 

School District decides to dispose of Remaining School District Property; 

PenMet Parks shall have a Right of First Offer, on commercially reasonable terms and in 

compliance with applicable laws, to purchase the Remaining School District Property and a Right 

of First Refusal regarding the Remaining School District Property; and 

PenMet Parks shall have the right to co-locate within any improvement constructed by the 

School District on  the Remaining School District Property that is intended for the maintenance, 

repair and/or storage of vehicles and equipment by paying their proportional share of the 

improvements and operating costs. 

This property exchange would be performed as an intergovernmental disposition of property pursuant 

to chapter 39.33 RCW.  Because this is an exchange between governmental entities, RCW 39.33.020 

requires before disposing of surplus property with an estimated value of more than fifty thousand 

dollars that PenMet Parks hold a public hearing.  The assessed value of both properties far exceeds the 

$50,000 threshold requiring a public hearing. 

At least ten days but not more than twenty-five days prior to the hearing, PenMet Parks must publish a 

public notice of reasonable size in display advertising form, setting forth the date, time, and place of the 

hearing at least once in a newspaper of general circulation in the Pierce County area.  A news release 

pertaining to the hearing must also be disseminated among printed and electronic media in the Pierce 

County area.  The public notice and news release must identify the property using a description which 

can easily be understood by the public and also describe the proposed use of the lands involved. 

Assuming both PenMet Parks and PSD waive their respective inspection contingencies and an 

acceptable Joint Use Agreement has been negotiated, staff will schedule the hearing for the ________ 

Park Board meeting and issue the appropriate notices.  At that meeting and following the hearing, staff 

will present another resolution for the Board’s consideration that will declare the property surplus and 

authorize the property exchange. 

Recommendation 

Staff recommends that the Board approve Resolution R2019-012 authorizing the Executive Director to 

execute the Property Exchange Agreement between PenMet Parks and the Peninsula School District in 

substantially the form attached as Exhibit A. 

Policy Implications/Support 

1. At their regular meeting held on December 6, 2010, the PenMet Parks Board of Park Commissioners 
approved an agreement to accept the transfer of certain properties from Pierce County including 
the Peninsula Recreation Area (which includes the GHHS Track Property). 



58 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 

2. At their regular meeting held on June 6, 2011, the PenMet Parks Board of Park Commissioners 
approved an agreement where PenMet Parks and the Peninsula School District agree to work 
together for the best interest of their citizens to explore cooperative opportunities to share 
resources. 

3. At their regular meeting held on August 4, 2014, the PenMet Parks Board of Park Commissioners 
approved an agreement for the sale of a portion of the Peninsula Recreation Area property to the 
Boys and Girls Clubs of South Puget Sound. 

4. In September, 2016, Peninsula School District leased the property at 10202 Bujacich Rd (Tax Parcel 
No. 0122363023) to PenMet Parks for use as a dog park and recreational trails. 

 

Motion 

I move to approve Resolution R2019-012 authorizing the Executive Director to execute the Property 

Exchange Agreement between PenMet Parks and the Peninsula School District in substantially the form 

attached as Exhibit C. 

Should you have any questions or comments, please contact me at your earliest opportunity so that we 

may perform any additional research necessary to provide answers at the meeting.  I can be contacted 

at 253-858-3408 or via e-mail at GAkramoff@PenMetParks.org. 

Attachments (sent separately and available by request): 

Exhibit A – Legal Description for the Park Property 

Exhibit B – Legal Description for the School Property 

Exhibit C – Property Exchange Agreement with Exhibits 

  

mailto:GAkramoff@PenMetParks.org


59 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District 

RESOLUTION NO. R2019-012 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

AUTHORIZING THE INTERIM EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE THE 
PROPERTY EXCHANGE AGREEMENT BETWEEN PENINSULA SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NO. 401 AND PENINSULA METROPOLITAN PARK DISTRICT 
 

WHEREAS, the Peninsula Metropolitan Park District (PenMet Parks) and the Peninsula School 

District No. 401 (the School District) have agreed to work collaboratively and cooperatively with 

each other to enhance the efficiencies and benefits to the community; and 

WHEREAS, PenMet Parks owns a 9.2 acre parcel of property located at Skansie Avenue in Gig 

Harbor, which is more particularly described on the attached Exhibit A (the “Park Property”).  

PenMet Parks has leased the Park Property to the School District for many years and the School 

District has constructed improvements on the Park Property including a track, storage building and 

football field; and  

WHEREAS, the School District owns an approximately 94 acre parcel of property located at 

10202 Bujacich Road NW in Gig Harbor, which is more particularly described on the attached 

Exhibit B (the “School Property”).  The School District has leased the School Property to PenMet 

Parks for many years and PenMet Parks has constructed improvements on the School Property 

including a marked trail system and a 15 acre fenced off-leash dog park; and 

WHEREAS, it would be in the best interests of PenMet Parks and the School District, as well as 

the community, that the parties exchange the Park Property and the School Property to hold and 

own in fee title rather than pursuant to separate lease agreements; and 

WHEREAS, the parties wish to further explore and evaluate this property exchange by performing 

certain inspections and negotiating an agreement relating to that portion of the School Property 

that the School District would retain; and 

WHEREAS, Chapter 39.33 RCW (Intergovernmental Disposition of Property) permits local 

government units to transfer or exchange title to real property on such terms and conditions as 

may be mutually agreed upon; NOW, THEREFORE BE IT 

RESOLVED by the Board of Park Commissioners of the Peninsula Metropolitan Park District that 

the Interim Executive Director is hereby authorized to execute the Property Exchange Agreement 

between PenMet Parks and the Peninsula School District in substantially the form attached as 

Exhibit C.  It is 

FURTHER RESOLVED by the Board of Park Commissioners of the Peninsula Metropolitan Park 

District that if the conditions in the Property Exchange Agreement to transferring the property are 

satisfied, that notice and a public hearing be scheduled in accordance with RCW 39.33.020 

regarding the disposition of the property. 

  



60 | P a g e   A g e n d a  0 9 - 1 7 - 1 9  
 

The foregoing resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of the Board of Park Commissioners 

of the Peninsula Metropolitan Park District held on September 17, 2019. 

 

 

       

Maryellen Hill, President 

` 

              

Amanda Babich, Clerk      Attest 


